

CITY OF MOUNTAIN VIEW
RENTAL HOUSING COMMITTEE
RESOLUTION NO. ...
SERIES 2025

A RESOLUTION OF THE RENTAL HOUSING COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN VIEW TO
ADOPT AMENDMENTS TO THE MOBILE HOME RENT STABILIZATION ORDINANCE (MHSRO)
REGULATIONS CHAPTER 1 - PURPOSE, AND CHAPTER 2 - DEFINITIONS

WHEREAS Section 46.9(a)(3) of the MHSRO authorizes the Rental Housing Committee to establish rules and regulations for administration and enforcement of the MHSRO; and

WHEREAS the Rental Housing Committee held a publicly noticed meeting on August 28, 2025 and discussed and considered amendments to the MHSRO Regulations Chapter 1 – Purpose, and Chapter 2 – Definitions;

now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED that the Rental Housing Committee of the City of Mountain View hereby adopts amendments to the MHSRO Regulations Chapter - Purpose, and Chapter 2 - Definitions, as set forth in Exhibit A and Exhibit B of this resolution.

Exhibit A: Mobile Home Rent Stabilization Ordinance Regulations Chapter 1 – Purpose.

Exhibit B: Mobile Home Rent Stabilization Ordinance Regulations Chapter 2 – Definitions.

MOBILE HOME RENT STABILIZATION ORDINANCE REGULATIONS

CHAPTER 1 PURPOSE, SCOPE AND AUTHORIZATION

A. Purpose, Scope and Authorization. These regulations are intended to provide guidance and interpretation for the Mobile Home Rent Stabilization Ordinance (hereinafter the “MHRSO”) approved by the City Council of the City of Mountain View as Ordinance No. 8.21 on September 28, 2021 and codified in the Mountain View Municipal Code at Section 46.1, *et seq.* These regulations should be applied as a supplement to the MHRSO and in a manner that is consistent with the MHRSO, in both the MHRSO’s content and intent. These regulations will be in force as of the effective date for the implementation of the MHRSO, October 28, 2021. They are established pursuant to the authority granted the Rental Housing Committee of the City of Mountain View by the MHRSO to implement its terms, specifically as set forth in Section 46.9 of the MHRSO.

B. Staff Authority to Amend MHRSO Regulations. The Committee delegates to Staff the authority to make minor amendments and clarifications to the MHRSO Regulations without Committee action, approval, or ratification. Staff will provide the Committee with notice of proposed amendments by placing said amendments on the consent calendar of the agenda for the next regular Committee meeting.

MOBILE HOME RENT STABILIZATION ORDINANCE REGULATIONS

CHAPTER 2 DEFINITIONS

Unless further defined in the Mobile Home Rent Stabilization Ordinance (the "MHRSO" or the "Ordinance") or elsewhere in the Regulations, the words or phrases below shall have the following meanings:

~~a. Accord. A written agreement between a Park Owner and the City of Mountain View, the form of which has been adopted by the City Council.~~

~~b.a. Annual General Adjustment. The Annual General Adjustment is the percentage by which the Rent for existing tenancies in covered Mobile Home Spaces and Mobile Homes may be increased each year, subject to the limitations of the Ordinance~~MHRSO and these Regulations.

~~b. Base Rent. The Base Rent is the reference point from which the lawful Rent shall be determined and adjusted in accordance with the Ordinance~~MHRSO and these Regulations.

- (1) Tenancies Commencing on or before March 16, 2021. The Base Rent for tenancies that commenced on or before March 16, 2021 shall be the Rent in effect on March 16, 2021.
- (2) Tenancies Commencing After March 16, 2021. The Base Rent for tenancies that commenced after March 16, 2021 shall be the initial rental rate charged upon initial occupancy, provided that amount is not in violation of the MHRSO, the Regulations, the Mountain View City Code~~this Article~~ or any provision of State law. The term "initial rental rate" means only the amount of Rent actually demanded to be paid and paid by the Tenant for the initial term of the tenancy.
 - (i) Rent Concession. If a temporary rent concession is provided by the Park Owner or Mobile Home Landlord during the initial term of the tenancy, the "initial rental rate" shall be the average amount of Rent actually demanded to be paid and paid by the Mobile Home Owner or Mobile Home Tenant during the initial term of the tenancy. A "rent concession" includes, but is not limited to, any of the following:
 - One (1) or more months' free Rent, except as specified in Subparagraph (ii) below; or

- A dollar or percentage amount reduction of the Rent provided over the course of the initial term of the tenancy.

(ii) Exclusions. The following shall not be considered in the calculation of “Base Rent” for any Tenancy:

- First month’s free or discounted Rent, where the “first month” refers to the first full month following the start date of the Space Rental Agreement or the Mobile Home Rental Agreement. For instance, if the Space Rental Agreement or Mobile Home Rental Agreement begins on September 15, then the “first month” would refer to the period from October 1 to October 31; or
- The Mobile Home Owner’s or Mobile Home Tenant’s withholding of or failure to pay Rent in violation of the Rental Agreement, the ~~Ordinance~~MHRSO, these Regulations, or State law; or
- Any reduction in Rent imposed pursuant to the final decision of a Hearing Officer or the ~~Rental Housing~~ Committee in a petition for downward adjustment based on failure to maintain habitable premises or a decrease in housing services or maintenance, as outlined in Sections F and H of Chapter 7 of these Regulations, respectively.

(iii) Initial Term of Tenancy. The “initial term of the tenancy” refers to either the initial term as agreed upon by the Park Owner or Mobile Home Landlord and Mobile Home Owner or Mobile Home Tenant in the Space Rental Agreement or Mobile Home Rental Agreement, or if the Space Rental Agreement or Mobile Home Rental Agreement is month to month or longer than twelve (12) months, the initial term shall mean twelve (12) months.

- Where the first month’s Rent is free, the “initial term of the tenancy” shall be reduced by one (1) month in calculating the Base Rent. For instance, if the Rent for the first month of a six (6) month Space Rental Agreement is free, then the “initial rental rate” shall be the average of the amount of Rent actually demanded to be paid and paid by the Mobile Home Owner ~~or Mobile Home Tenant~~ over the course of the subsequent five (5) months. Similarly, if the Rent for the first month of a twelve (12) month Space Rental Agreement is free, then the “initial rental rate” shall be the average of the amount of Rent actually demanded to be paid and paid by the Mobile Home Owner ~~or Mobile Home Tenant~~ over the course of the subsequent eleven (11) months.

(iv) Examples. Below are a number of examples demonstrating the calculation of Base Rent.

- Example 1: If a Mobile Home Tenant agrees to pay One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000)/month for twelve (12) months for a [Mobile Home Rental Unit](#) and the Mobile Home Landlord provides a concession of first month's Rent free, then the Base Rent for the Mobile Home shall be One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000) ([calculated as follows:](#) $(11 \times \$1,000)/11$).
 - Example 2: If a Mobile Home Tenant agrees to pay One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000)/month for twelve (12) months for a Mobile Home and the Mobile Home Landlord provides a concession of two (2) free months, then the Base Rent for the Mobile Home shall be Nine Hundred Nine Dollars and Nine Cents (\$909.09) ([calculated as follows:](#) $(10 \times \$1,000)/11$). In this example, the first free month would be excluded from the calculation, while the second free month would be included in the calculation.
 - Example 3: If the Mobile Home Landlord provides a twenty-five percent (25%) discount over the course of the twelve (12) months, then the Base Rent for the Mobile Home shall be Seven Hundred Seventy Dollars and Eighty-Three Cents (\$770.83) ([calculated as follows:](#) $((1 \times \$1000 + (11 \times \$750))/12)$). In this example, the first month's reduction would be excluded from the calculation.
- (v) Notice of Rent Concession. A Park Owner or Mobile Home Landlord who provides any form of concession, regardless of whether that concession is included or excluded from the calculation of Base Rent, must provide the Mobile Home Owner or Mobile Home Tenant with a Notice of Rent Concession at the time that the Parties enter into the Space Rental Agreement or Mobile Home Rental Agreement. The Notice of Rent Concession shall be in a form prescribed and provided by the [Rental Housing](#) Committee, and shall include, at least, the following information:
- a. The type of concession provided;
 - b. The amount of concession provided; and
 - c. The calculation of the Mobile Home Owner's or Mobile Home Tenant's Base Rent for the Mobile Home Space or Mobile Home, as calculated pursuant to these Regulations.

This requirement shall apply to Tenancies commencing on or after September 1, 2022.

- c. **Base Year.** The calendar year of 2021.

- d. **Committee**. The term “Committee” refers to the Mountain View Rental Housing Committee ~~established pursuant to as set forth in~~ Section 1709 of the Community Stabilization and Fair Rent Act (Charter Article XVII).~~established by the Ordinance.~~
- e. **Communal Facilities**. Those services and facilities within the Mobile Home Park that Mobile Home residents are entitled to use, including, but not limited to, any private roads or rights-of-way, clubs or clubhouses, and each other common-area facility that is open or available to Mobile Home residents of the Mobile Home Park.
- f. **City Council**. The term “City Council” refers to the City Council of the City of Mountain View.
- g. **Disabled**. The term “Disabled” is defined in Government Code Section 12955.3.
- ~~g.h.~~ **Division**. The term “Division” refers to the Rent Stabilization Division of the Housing Department of the City of Mountain View.
- ~~h.i.~~ **Hearing Officer**. An official appointed by the Committee to conduct an investigation or administrative hearing pursuant to the MHRSO or these Regulations.
- ~~i.j.~~ **Housing Services**. Housing Services include, but are not limited to, repairs, maintenance, painting, providing light, hot and cold water, elevator service, window shades and screens, storage, kitchen, bath and laundry facilities and privileges, janitor services, Utility Charges that are paid by the Landlord, refuse removal, furnishings, telephone, parking, the right to have a specified number of occupants, and any other benefit, privilege, or facility connected with the use or occupancy of any Mobile Home or Mobile Home Space. Housing Services to a Mobile Home or Mobile Home Space shall include a proportionate part of access to and services provided by Communal Facilities.
- (1) For the purposes of the MHRSO and these Regulations, a Park Owner’s or Mobile Home Landlord’s reporting of a Mobile Home Owner’s or Mobile Home Tenant’s positive rental payment information to at least one nationwide consumer reporting agency that meets the definition in Section 603(p) of the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 1681a(p)), or any other consumer reporting agency that meets the definition in Section 603(f) of the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 1681a(f)) as long as the consumer reporting agency resells or otherwise furnishes rental payment information to a nationwide consumer reporting agency that meets the definition in Section 603(p) of the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 1681a(p)), pursuant to California Civil Code Section 1954.07, does not constitute a Housing Service.
- ~~j.k.~~ **Individual Rent Adjustment**. An adjustment to the otherwise lawful Rent authorized by a Hearing Officer or the Committee pursuant to the MHRSO and these Regulations.
- ~~k.l.~~ **Mobile Home**. The term “Mobile Home” has the same meaning and definition of “mobilehome” defined in California Civil Code Section 798.3, as it may be amended from

time to time, or a successor code section.

l.m. Mobile Home Landlord. The person(s) or entity(ies) that lawfully own(s) a Mobile Home and rents the Mobile Home, including each manager, agent, and representative authorized to act on behalf of the owner or operator as well as the predecessor and any successor-in-interest to the landlord.

m.n. Mobile Home Owner. A person who owns a Mobile Home and is also renting a Mobile Home Space in a Mobile Home Park under a Space Rental Agreement with the Park Owner, which may include the use of ~~services~~ Communal Facilities of the Mobile Home Park and other amenities.

n.o. Mobile Home Park. The term “Mobile Home Park” has the same meaning and definition of “mobilehome park” defined in California Civil Code Section 798.4, as it may be amended from time to time, or successor code section.

o.p. Mobile Home Rental Agreement. A lease or other oral or written agreement between the Mobile Home Landlord and Mobile Home Tenant establishing the terms and conditions of the Tenancy.

p.q. Mobilehome Residency Law. The term “Mobilehome Residency Law” refers to California Civil Code Sections 798 through 799.11, as may be amended from time to time, or successor code section.

q.r. Mobile Home Space. The lot or space of land in a Mobile Home Park where a Mobile Home is or may be located, as well as the right or license to access that space or lot and any other Communal Facilities in the Mobile Home Park.

r.s. Mobile Home Tenant. A tenant, subtenant, lessee, sublessee, or any other person entitled under the terms of a Mobile Home Rental Agreement or the MHRSO or these Regulations to the use or occupancy of any Mobile Home.

s.t. Park Owner. The person(s) or entity(ies) that lawfully own(s) and/or operate(s) a Mobile Home Park, including each manager, agent, and representative authorized to act on behalf of the owner or operator, as well as the predecessor and any successor-in-interest to the owner.

u. Petition. A petition ~~for Individual Rent Adjustment~~ pursuant to the ~~Ordinance~~ MHRSO and these Regulations.

(1) Rent Increase Petition. A Rent Increase Petition refers to a petition for Individual Rent Adjustment filed by a Landlord as authorized by subsection (a) of Section 46.10 of the MHRSO. “Rent Increase Petition” and “Maintenance of Net Operating Income (MNOI) Petition” are used interchangeably throughout these MHRSO Regulations.

(2) Rent Decrease Petition. A Rent Decrease Petition refers to a petition for Individual Rent Adjustment filed by a Tenant as authorized by subsection (b) of Section 46.10 of the MHRSO.

(3) Specified Capital Improvement Petition. A Specified Capital Improvement Petition refers to a petition for Individual Rent Adjustment filed by a Landlord pursuant to the expedited review process authorized by Section F of Chapter 7 of these Regulations.

~~(1)~~(4) Joint Petition. A Joint Petition refers to a petition filed by a Tenant together with their Landlord, in accordance with Section G of Chapter 7 of these Regulations, for the purpose of requesting an increase in Rent or a one-time payment to recover cost associated with new or additional Housing Services, improvements or modifications to the Covered Rental Unit as requested by the Tenant, or the addition of an Additional Occupant.

~~t.v.~~ **Primary Residence.** The occupant's usual place of abode. To classify a Mobile Home as an occupant's Primary Residence does not require that the occupant be physically present in the Mobile Home at all times or continuously, but does require that the Mobile Home be the occupant's usual place of abode. Factors that are indicative of Primary Residence include, but are not limited to:

- (1) The occupant carries on basic living activities at the Mobile Home for extended periods;
- (2) The Mobile Home is listed with public agencies, including, but not limited to, Federal, State, and local taxing authorities, as the occupant's primary residence;
- (3) Utility Charges and other charges and fees associated with usage of the Mobile Home are billed to and paid by the occupant at the Mobile Home;
- (4) The occupant does not file for a homeowner's tax exemption for any different property;
- (5) The occupant is not registered to vote at any other location; and
- (6) Ownership is held in the name of the occupant claiming Primary Residence and not held by a Limited Liability Corporation or other corporate or business entity structure.

~~u.w.~~ **Recognized Resident Organization.** Any group of Residents, whether Mobile Home Owners and/or Mobile Home Tenants, residing in a Mobile Home Park or Parks operated by the same management company, agent, Park Owner, or Mobile Home Landlord who choose to be so designated. This shall also include any other at-large organization that represents the interest of Mobile Home Owners and/or Mobile Home Tenants.

~~v.x.~~ **Relocation Assistance.** Financial assistance in the amounts set forth in Mountain View City Code, Article XIII, Section 36.38.15, including, without limitation, Subsection 36.38.15(d) regarding "special-circumstances" households as defined in Mountain View

City Code, Article XIII, Section 36.38.05(g), [as such code sections may be amended or recodified from time to time](#).

~~w-y.~~ **Rent.** All periodic payments and all nonmonetary consideration, including, but not limited to, the fair-market value of goods, labor performed, or services rendered to or for the benefit of a Park Owner for the use or occupancy of a Mobile Home Space or to a Mobile Home Landlord for the use or occupancy of a Mobile Home, access to and from a Mobile Home Space [or Mobile Home](#), and any Communal Facilities and Housing Services. Rent includes all payment and consideration demanded or paid for parking, pets, furniture, and/or subletting.

Rent excludes:

- (1) Any incidental reasonable charges for services actually rendered in accordance with California Civil Code Sections 798.31 and 798.32 as they may be amended from time to time, or successor code sections; and
- (2) Any separately billed utility fees and charges, which shall not be deemed to be Rent charged for a Mobile Home Space in accordance with California Civil Code Section 798.41 as it may be amended from time to time, or successor code sections. However, utility fees and charges shall be considered Rent charged for tenancy of Mobile Homes;
- (3) Any fee, assessment, or charge paid pursuant to California Civil Code Section 798.9(a), including any actual fee or cost imposed by a local government pursuant to California Civil Code Section 798.37 as it may be amended from time to time, or successor code sections; and
- (4) A fee charged by a Mobile Home Landlord [or Park Owner](#) to recover any costs associated with reporting a Mobile Home Tenant's [Mobile Home Owner's](#) positive rental payment information to a consumer reporting agency pursuant to California Civil Code Section 1954.07, provided such fee is compliant with the limitations in California Civil Code Section 1954.07. In accordance with state law, failure to pay this fee by the [Mobile Home](#) Tenant [or Mobile Home Owner](#) shall not be cause for termination of the tenancy (whether pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1161 or otherwise), and a [Mobile Home](#) Landlord [or Park Owner](#) may not deduct the unpaid fee from a [Mobile Home](#) Tenant's [or Mobile Home Owner's](#) security deposit.

~~*-z.~~ **Rent Refund.** The term "Rent Refund" refers to a payment or credit provided to a Mobile Home Owner or Mobile Home Tenant by a Park Owner or Mobile Home Landlord where the Park Owner or Mobile Home Landlord charged Rent for the covered Mobile Home Space or Mobile Home above what was permitted by the MHRSO [and these regulations](#).

~~y-aa.~~ **Rent Rollback.** The term "Rent Rollback" refers to the act of lowering the effective Rent for a covered Mobile Home Space or Mobile Home to the ~~lawful Rent~~~~Base Rent~~. ~~A Rent Rollback does not include any temporary decrease in the effective Rent for a~~ [Mobile](#)

Home or Mobile Home Space ~~fully covered rental unit~~ ordered by a Hearing Officer or the Rental Housing Committee pursuant to MHRSO 46.10(b)2 (Petition for Downward Adjustment—Failure to Maintain Habitable Premises) and/or and (Petition for Downward Adjustment—Decrease in Housing Services or Maintenance).

~~z.bb.~~ **Rental Housing Fee.** The fee described in Section 46.9(C) of the MHRSO Mobile Home Rent Stabilization Ordinance.

~~cc.~~ **Space Rental Agreement.** A lease or other oral or written agreement between the Mobile Home Park Owner and Mobile Home Owner establishing the terms and conditions of the Mobile Home Space Tenancy.

~~aa-dd.~~ **Substantial Compliance and/or Substantially Complaint.** Meet the requirements as defined in Table 1 of Chapter 12 of these Regulations.

~~bb-ee.~~ **Tenancy.** The legal relationships created by a Space Rental Agreement with a Park Owner for use or occupancy of a Mobile Home Space or the legal relationship created by a Mobile Home Rental Agreement with a Mobile Home Landlord for the use and occupancy of a Mobile Home in a Mobile Home Park. .

~~ee.ff.~~ **Utility Charges.** Any charges for gas, electricity, water, garbage, sewer, telephone, cable, internet, or other service relating to the use and occupancy of a Mobile Home.

~~dd-gg.~~ **Written Notice to Cease.** A written notice provided by a Mobile Home Landlord that gives a Mobile Home Tenant an opportunity to cure an alleged violation or problem prior to service of a notice to terminate tenancy. Any Written Notice to Cease must:

- (1) Provide the Mobile Home Tenant a reasonable period to cure the alleged violation or problem;
- (2) Inform the Mobile Home Tenant that failure to cure may result in the initiation of eviction proceedings;
- (3) Inform the Mobile Home Tenant of the right to request a reasonable accommodation;
- (4) Inform the Mobile Home Tenant of the contact number for the Committee; and
- (5) Include sufficient details about the conduct underlying the Written Notice to Cease that allow a reasonable person to comply.